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9 See Exchange Act Release No. 47214 (January 
17, 2003).

10 15 U.S.C. 78f(b)(5). 11 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12).

registering with the Commission unless 
the adviser:

(i) Has assets under management of 
not less than $25 million (or such higher 
amount as the Commission may, by 
rule, deem appropriate), or

(ii) Is an adviser to an investment 
company registered under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940. 

The Proposed Amendments 

The provisions of the Coordination 
Act have been estimated to reduce by 
two-thirds the number of advisers 
eligible to register with the Commission. 

Consequently, a large number of 
investment advisers (those with less 
than $25 million under management) 
who exercise investment discretion 
pursuant to an advisory contract, and 
have been designated to the member 
organization in writing by the beneficial 
owner to receive and vote proxy 
materials, are no longer authorized to do 
so under NYSE Rules. NYSE believes 
that amending NYSE rules 450, 451, 
452, and 465 to allow such 
authorization to be extended to advisers 
registered under state law would allow 
for the reasonable customer expectation 
that duly designated advisers, subject to 
regulation, be permitted to receive and 
vote proxy materials on their behalf. 

The Exchange represents that the 
proposed amendments are consistent 
with a proposed rule change recently 
filed by the National Association of 
Securities Dealers, Inc. with the 
Commission.9

2. Statutory Basis 

NYSE believes that the basis under 
the Exchange Act for this proposed rule 
change is the requirement under section 
6(b)(5) of the Act 10 that an Exchange 
have rules that are designed to promote 
just and equitable principles of trade, to 
remove impediments to and to perfect 
the mechanism of a free and open 
market and a national market system 
and, in general, to protect investors and 
the public interest.

B. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement on Burden on Competition 

The Exchange believes that the 
proposal does not impose any burden 
on competition not necessary or 
appropriate in furtherance of the 
purposes of the Act. 

C. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement on Comments on the 
Proposed Rule Change Received From 
Members, Participants or Others 

Written comments were neither 
solicited nor received. 

III. Date of Effectiveness of the 
Proposed Rule Change and Timing for 
Commission Action 

Within 35 days of the date of 
publication of this notice in the Federal 
Register or within such longer period (i) 
as the Commission may designate up to 
90 days of such date if it finds such 
longer period to be appropriate and 
publishes its reasons for so finding or 
(ii) as to which the self-regulatory 
organization consents, the Commission 
will: 

(A) By order approve such proposed 
rule change, or 

(B) Institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change 
should be disapproved. 

IV. Solicitation of Comments 

Interested persons are invited to 
submit written data, views and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 
change is consistent with the Act. 
Persons making written submissions 
should file six copies thereof with the 
Secretary, Securities and Exchange 
Commission, 450 Fifth Street, NW., 
Washington, DC 20549–0609. Copies of 
the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements 
with respect to the proposed rule 
change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written 
communications relating to the 
proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than 
those that may be withheld from the 
public in accordance with the 
provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for inspection and copying in 
the Commission’s Public Reference 
Room. Copies of such filing will also be 
available for inspection and copying at 
the principal office of the NYSE. All 
submissions should refer to the file 
number in the caption above and should 
be submitted by February 18, 2003.

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Market Regulation, pursuant to delegated 
authority.11

Margaret H. McFarland, 
Deputy Secretary.
[FR Doc. 03–1881 Filed 1–27–03; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8010–01–P

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

[Declaration of Disaster #3459] 

State of Texas (Amendment #7) 

In accordance with a notice received 
from the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, dated January 16, 
2003, the above numbered declaration is 
hereby amended to extend the deadline 
for filing applications for physical 
damages as a result of this disaster to 
January 31, 2003. 

All other information remains the 
same, i.e., the deadline for filing 
applications for economic injury is 
August 5, 2003.

(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
Program Nos. 59002 and 59008). 

Dated: January 17, 2003. 
Herbert L. Mitchell, 
Associate Administrator for Disaster 
Assistance.
[FR Doc. 03–1923 Filed 1–27–03; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 8025–01–P

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

[Public Notice 4223] 

Secretary of State’s Advisory 
Committee on Private International 
Law: Study Group on Reciprocal 
Enforcement of Child Support 
Obligations; Notice of Meetings 

There will be a public meeting of a 
Study Group on International Child 
Support of the Secretary of State’s 
Advisory Committee on Private 
International Law, on Wednesday, 
February 5, 2003, from 1 p.m. to 4 p.m. 
at the Hyatt Regency Capitol Hill, 400 
New Jersey Avenue, NW., Washington, 
DC (Columbia Room, Ballroom level). 

The purpose of this meeting is to 
assist the Department of State and the 
Office of Child Support Enforcement of 
the Department of Health and Human 
Services in preparing for the upcoming 
negotiation, under the auspices of the 
Hague Conference on Private 
International Law, of a new 
international convention on the 
international recovery of child support 
and other forms of family maintenance. 
The first session of this negotiation is 
scheduled for May 2003 in The Hague. 
Documents relevant to this project can 
be found on the web site of the Hague 
Conference (www.hcch.net). 

The Study Group meetings are open 
to the public up to the capacity of the 
meeting rooms. Interested persons are 
invited to attend and to express their 
views. Persons who wish to have their 
views considered are encouraged, but 
not required, to submit written
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1 Failure by an airline to comply with section 145 
may constitute an unfair and deceptive practice 
violation of 49 U.S.C. 41712.

2 We further pointed out that, under section 145, 
passengers whose transportation has been 
interrupted have 60 days after the date of the 
service interruption to make alternative 
arrangements with an airline for that transportation.

3 We pointed out that examples of such costs 
include the cost of rewriting tickets, providing 
additional onboard meals, and the incremental fuel 
costs attributable to transporting an additional 
passenger.

4 Long before formal comments were requested, 
Department staff had informally advised carriers 
that expressed concerns about this guidance that, to 
the extent they experienced and could document 
reasonable direct costs in excess of $25.00, they 
should be entitled to recover such costs under the 
statute. At that time, Department staff specifically 
requested each airline that had expressed concern 
to provide evidence demonstrating that its 
reasonable direct costs exceeded the estimated 
$25.00 amount. No airline provided any 
documentation in response to that informal request. 
A few airlines also expressed separate concerns 
about difficulties in verifying confirmed 
reservations of passengers holding electronic 
tickets, in which case a hard-copy ticket would not 
be available. Department staff suggested it would be 
appropriate to require such passengers to provide 
proof of payment and confirmation, such as receipts 
and printed itineraries.

5 Both carriers have challenged the Department’s 
efforts to provide guidance regarding section 145 in 
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of 
Columbia. See Delta Air Lines, Inc. and American 
Airlines, Inc. v. U.S. Department of Transportation, 
Case No. 02–1309 (D.C. Cir. filed October 8, 2002).

comments in advance of the meeting. 
Written comments should be submitted 
by e-mail to Mary Helen Carlson at 
carlsonmh@ms.state.gov. All comments 
will be made available to the public by 
request to Ms. Carlson via e-mail or by 
phone (202–776–8420).

Mary Helen Carlson, 
Office of the Legal Adviser for Private 
International Law, Department of State.
[FR Doc. 03–1890 Filed 1–27–03; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4710–08–P

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Office of the Secretary 

Honoring Tickets of National Airlines 
Pursuant to the Requirements of the 
Section 145 of the Aviation and 
Transportation Security Act 

On November 14, 2002, the 
Department of Transportation issued a 
notice providing guidance for airlines 
and the traveling public regarding the 
obligation of airlines under section 145 
of the Aviation and Transportation 
Security Act, Pub. L. 107–71, 115 Stat. 
645 (November 19, 2001) (‘‘Act’’), to 
transport passengers of airlines that 
have ceased operations due to 
insolvency or bankruptcy. That notice, 
issued after National Airlines’ 
November 6, 2002, cessation of 
operations, followed a similar notice 
issued August 8, 2002, after Vanguard 
Airlines’ July 2002 cessation of service. 
Both notices were intended to provide 
immediate guidance in response to 
numerous complaints from ticketed 
passengers and inquiries from airlines. 
In addition, the November 14 notice 
also requested comments from airlines 
and the traveling public about the cost 
to carriers of transporting passengers of 
carriers that had ceased operations. The 
purpose of this notice is to respond to 
those comments. 

Section 145 requires, in essence, that 
airlines operating on the same route as 
an insolvent carrier that has ceased 
operations transport the ticketed 
passengers of the insolvent carrier ‘‘to 
the extent practicable.’’ Our earlier 
notices mentioned several factors that 
we would look to in determining 
whether airlines were complying with 
section 145.1 We stated, among other 
things, our preliminary view that, at a 
minimum, section 145 requires that 
passengers holding valid confirmed 
tickets, whether paper or electronic, on 
an insolvent or bankrupt carrier be 

transported by other carriers who 
operate on the route for which the 
passenger is ticketed on a space-
available basis, without significant 
additional charges.2 We made clear in 
our guidance, however, that we did not 
believe that Congress intended to 
prohibit carriers from recovering from 
accommodated passengers the amounts 
associated with the actual cost of 
providing such transportation. We 
stated that we did not foresee that such 
costs would exceed $25.00, an amount 
that we made clear was an estimate of 
the magnitude of the additional direct 
costs carriers might incur in 
transporting affected passengers on a 
standby basis.3

In our November 14 notice, in 
response to informal concerns raised by 
several carriers that our $25.00 cost 
estimate is too low, we formally 
requested that any airline or person who 
believes that the Department’s estimate 
of $25.00 is either insufficient, or is 
more than necessary to cover the direct 
costs of accommodating ticketed 
passengers on a space-available basis, 
contact the Department and provide 
written comments and cost evidence in 
support of that position. Our formal 
request for written comments was made 
after complaining carriers had failed to 
respond to our earlier, informal requests 
for such information, and after reports 
that consumers had been, at least 
initially, charged far in excess of $25.00 
for transportation.4

Delta Airlines (‘‘Delta’’), American 
Airlines (‘‘American’’), America West 
Airlines (‘‘America West’’), and United 
Airlines (‘‘United’’) filed comments in 
response to our request. Unfortunately, 

none of those carriers provided 
information responsive to our request or 
otherwise demonstrating costs in excess 
of $25.00 each way for space-available 
transportation. Instead, Delta and 
American chose to argue that the 
Department has no ratemaking 
authority, and the Department’s 
suggestion that, for purposes of section 
145, $25.00 each way is a reasonable 
estimate of the cost to a carrier of 
providing alternate, space-available 
transportation constitutes ratemaking.5 
They both further argue that, even if the 
Department had authority under section 
145 to review the reasonableness of fees 
charged to accommodate another 
airline’s passengers, the marketplace 
should dictate the amount of that 
charge. American argues that in a 
deregulated environment passengers 
should assume the risk in booking with 
a financially weak carrier and, 
according to American and Delta, an 
airline’s ‘‘standard reticketing fee,’’ 
which is charged to fare-paying 
passengers who, under terms of their 
contract of carriage with the airline, 
voluntarily change their travel plans, is 
what the marketplace dictates. The 
carriers further argue that charging 
passengers of another airline that has 
ceased operations under section 145 an 
amount less than that ‘‘standard 
reticketing fee’’ is unfair to their fare-
paying passengers. American also 
asserts in its comments that we have not 
adequately addressed its concerns over 
establishing the validity of tickets, 
especially electronic tickets, of 
passengers seeking reaccommodation 
under section 145.

America West and United both assert 
that their respective costs for providing 
alternate transportation on a space-
available basis exceed $25.00 each way. 
Neither airline, however, provided 
information in support of that assertion, 
as requested by the Department. 
According to America West, the costs 
associated with transporting passengers 
of an airline that has ceased operations 
involve consideration of delays, security 
and baggage screening, and fraud, and 
could vary by market, time of service, 
and season. Accordingly, the carrier 
states, it did not have sufficient time to 
document all such costs. It states that 
instead, it elected to assess such 
passengers the same fare it would 
charge employees for friends and family 
members, under its ‘‘buddy pass’’ 
system, which permits those persons to
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